
Wednesday, 13 July 2022 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 21 July 2022, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 20 July 2022 - by notifying the Officer named on the report of the 
objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  LEASE OF FLEET VEHICLES (5 X 3.5T ARTICULATED COMPACT 
PRECINCT STREET SWEEPING VEHICLES 1 X 6.0T ARTICULATED 
COMPACT STREET SWEEPING VEHICLE FOR THE COUNCIL-AWARD OF 
CONTRACT)  

3 - 12 

 To consider the award of a lease for 5 years of 5x3.5t articulated compact 
precinct street sweeping vehicles and 1x 6.0t articulated compact precinct street 
sweeping vehicle. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

While there are no decisions to be taken in Part II of the agenda, please note Part II 
Appendix of the report.  

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision: Thursday, 21 July 2022 

Lease of fleet vehicles (5 x 3.5t articulated compact 
precinct street sweeping vehicles 1 x 6.0t 

articulated compact street sweeping vehicle for 
the Council-award of contract) 

 

Portfolio:   Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder 

Decision Maker: Director of Customer and Commercial Services and Customer and 
Locality Services Portfolio Holder 

Report Author: Frankie Flannigan – Service Delivery Manager 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Published 21st June 2022 

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Working across boundaries –-N/A  

Delivering a balanced community – N/A 

A fairer South Lakeland – N/A 

Addressing the climate emergency – Ensuring the fleet is in good condition to enable 
appropriate street sweeping within  the set out programme ensuring clean streets. 

 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 To approve the award of a lease for 5 years of 5x3.5t articulated compact precinct 
street sweeping vehicles and 1x 6.0t articulated compact precinct street sweeping 
vehicle. The purchase is in line with the current capital replacement vehicle 
programme. It is expected that it will help reduce the maintenance and servicing 
costs for the service and provide a reliable fleet of vehicles to help the service run 
effectively 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is proposed that the Director of Customer and Commercial Services and the 
Portfolio Holder for Customer and Locality Services: 

 (1) Approve the 5 year term lease of the 6x road sweepers to the 
recommended bidder being the most economically advantageous tender as 
noted in Part II Appendix 1; and 

 (2) Agrees in consultation with the procurement Specialist and Lead 
Specialist Legal Governance and Democracy (Monitoring Officer) to enter into 
the appropriate contract on behalf of the Council with the successful bidder. 

Page 3

Item No.1



 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Please note that in accordance with Section 100B (2) of the Local Government  
Act 1972, copies of the appendix to this report are excluded from inspection by 
members of the public as they contain information as described in Schedule 12A 
of the Act, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, as follows:-  
 
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular  
person (including the authority holding that information). (Paragraph 3) 

In all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

3.2 The authority currently considers replacement of Vehicles after 7 years or as 
considered appropriate taking into account reliability and expected life span. This is 
the optimum period that provides for disposal of vehicle in advance of the vehicle-life 
costs outweighing the capital cost of replacement. The vehicle replacement 
programme is included within the Capital Programme and the tendered cost falls 
within the Capital sum available. These items were on the Procurement Schedule. 

3.3 The specification was agreed with input from the Transport manager, Team Leaders 
and Drivers to ensure that the correct requirements were specified and tendered.  

3.4  In this instance the CCS Framework RM6096 was accessed by the council in 
accordance with CPR 19. 

3.5 SLDC received one submission, which was for all 6 sweepers. The tender received 
met with the specification provided as part of the tender and details of the tender 
evaluation are outlined in the Part II appendix attached to this report.  

3.6 It is proposed that the Council proceeds with the lease of the 6 road sweepers having 
followed the Council’s procurement policy and the new vehicles meets with the 
requirements set out as part of the tender 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Part II – award of contract – tender report 

 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 The portfolio holder for Customer and Locality service has been consulted on the 
procurement of the vehicles. 

5.2 The Street scene department was consulted as part of the process, demo vehicles 
were brought in for testing to ensure that the correct specification was provided during 
tender. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 To not lease new sweepers and to run the existing fleet. This option is not 
recommended because it will inevitably lead to increase in maintenance and servicing 
costs and will provide an ageing fleet which will be less reliable. Reliability of vehicles 
is key to the Street scene department with programmes expected on set days. 

6.2 An alternative option is to purchase the vehicles as opposed to enter into lease 
arrangements; this is not recommended, as this would mean that the full  costs of 

Page 4



servicing and repairs (excluding warranty items) would be   borne by the authority; 
and as these are specialised vehicles those works would  require extensive 
outsourcing. The annual costs of servicing repairs for each vehicle become 
progressively higher during the lifetime of the vehicles. 

6.3 Another alternative option is to not award a contract to the recommended bidder in 
this procurement exercise. This is not considered a preferred option because the 
recommended bidder met the necessary criteria to proceed as set out in the analysis 
in the Part II appendix. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 The current capital programme includes for the replacement of the existing street 
sweepers and the tender price is within the budgetary provision.  The proposed lease 
of the vehicles was included on the Procurement Schedule which was approved by 
Council in March 2022. 

7.2 The specification was agreed with input from the Transport Manager, Team Leaders 
and Drivers to ensure that the correct requirements were specified and tendered. The 
tender was issued a framework call off (CCS Framework RM6096). Analysis of the 
tender response received is set out in the Part II appendix. 

Human Resources 

7.2 By procuring new vehicles through a lease arrangement, there will less demand on the 
Vehicle and Transport maintenance team and therefore staffing levels can be 
managed accordingly. 

Legal 

7.3 In accordance with Rule 2.2.5 of the Contract Procedure Rules, this report seeks 

approval from the relevant Director and Portfolio Holder to award a contract to the 
recommended bidder being the most economically advantageous tender, as noted in 
the Tender report in the Part II Appendix 1. Approval is also sought to enter into the 
appropriate contract (in consultation with the Procurement Specialist and the Lead 
Specialist Legal Governance and Democracy (Monitoring Officer)). 

 
7.4 Legal Governance and Democracy Specialists will advise on the contract  

documentation for the purchase. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.5 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

x    

 Air Quality x    

 Biodiversity     

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

x    

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 x   

 Active Travel  x   

Page 5



Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 x   

 Jobs and levels of pay  x   

 Healthier high streets  x   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 x   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  x   

 Access to housing  x   

 Crime  x   

 Social connectedness  x   

 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? NO 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: N/A 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P 
 

0 x N  

Disability P  0 x N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 x N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 x N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 x N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 x N  

Religion or belief P  0 x N  

Sex/gender P  0 x N  

Sexual orientation P  0 x N  

Armed forces families P  0 x N  

Rurality P  0 x N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P 
 

0 x N  

 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Tender return is valid for set 
period of time. If order is not 
placed, then tender will be 
invalid. 

Potential additional cost or 
need to re-tender 

Order to be placed for the 
vehicles following 
approval.  
 

 

Contact Officers Frankie Flannigan, Service Delivery Manager 01539 793165 email 
f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Page 6



Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Part II – award of contract – tender report 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

N/A  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Legal Services 29/06/22 30/06/22 

Section 151 Officer 29/06/22 30/06/22 

Monitoring Officer 29/06/22 30/06/22 

CMT N/A  

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 29/06/2022 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of the 
Corporate Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested parties 
before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must be reported 
at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Document is Restricted

Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Lease of fleet vehicles (5 x 3.5t articulated compact precinct street sweeping vehicles 1 x 6.0t articulated compact street sweeping vehicle for the Council-award of contract)
	Lease of fleet vehicles (5 x 3.5t articulated compact precinct street sweeping vehicles 1 x 6.0t articulated compact street sweeping vehicle for the Council-award of contract)  - Appendix 1


